TOWN OF PINE LEVEL
MINUTES OF
PINE LEVEL PLANNING BOARD MEETING
MARCH 27™, 2025 @ 6:30

MEETING INFORMATION

The Pine Level Planning Board met on March 27%, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. at the Pine Level Town Hall. The meeting was called
to order by Chairman Randy Jones.

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL

v RANDY JONES X TONIA HILL
X KEVIN KORNEGAY X TAMMY REGISTER

v BERRY GODWIN X GREG JOHNSON

vV FAYE STARLING X SHANNAN PARRISH

vV CECELIA JOYNER V SHANE STRICKLAND (ALT 1)
v RANDY HOLLOMAN (ALT 1)

Vv TERRY RAINS (ALT 2)

STAFF PRESENT - Town Clerk Ashley Willoughby, Planning and Zoning Director Scottie Hayes, Administrative
Assistant Danielle Lanier

OTHERS PRESENT Samuel and Debra Heuertz

APPROVAL/ AMENDMENT TO AGENDA

Town Clerk Ashley Willoughby mentioned to the Board that a letter of extension was submitted for the
Board to review and to be addressed under new business.
MOTION- To approve the agenda— Shane Strickland
SECOND- Cecelia Joyner
VOTE- UNANIMOUS

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR FEBUARY 27™, 2025
MOTION- To approve the minutes- Cecelia Joyner
SECOND- Shane Strickland

VOTE - UNANIMOUS




PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION OF APPOINTMENT

The Board was informed that Samuel Heuertz was the only applicant for the open position on the
Planning Board for In-Town Alt 3.
Chairman Randy Jones mentioned he didn’t recall ever having to recommend approval for an application for a
seat on the Planning Board. Mr. Jones stated that this process was up to the Town Board.

REVIEWAL OF SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUESTS

a. Special Use Permit for 107 E. Pine St. Mr. Jones went over the requested permit with the Board, Joey
Boykin owns the property, Justin Jackson is the person putting in the coffee shop. There was some
confusion about the verbiage on the SUP (Special Use Permit) application. Mr. Jones stated it was Justin
Jackson petitioning the Board due to his name being where it is stated “Name of Owner”. Mr. Jones
asked for clarification, as to who was asking for the SUP, as this was the Planning Board’s first reviewal of
a SUP since the updated MS (Main Street) district. Mr. Jones asked if the application is filled according to
the ownership of the property or of the business coming in. Planning and Zoning Administrator Scottie
Hayes stated it should be the owner of the property as long as it stays the same use. Mr. Jones stated the
usage still needs to be known for each business. Mr. Hayes replied that is what the change of tenant is
for. It was clarified by Mr. Hayes that the property owner is the one responsible for filling out the SUP
application, or at least has the consent of the property owner. The SUP is requesting a coffee shop at the
fore mentioned address. Mr. Jones stated that in the future it is important to have someone present
representing the SUP to answer any question the Board may have.

MOTION- To recommend approval of the Special Use Permit to the Town Board - Faye Starling
SECOND- Terry Rains
(This second and motion were later rescinded)

DISSCUSSION- Mrs. Cecelia Joyner pointed out that the form asks for the property owners name and asked if the
SUP come from the property owner. She mentioned that Justin Jackson’s name was on the line that read,
“Name of Owner” and it was in question if the form should come from just Joey Boykin, the property owner. To
clarify: the building is leased to Justin Jackson and the owner of the building is Joey Boykin. Mr. Jones stated it is
the owner of the property and the owner of the business asking for the SUP. Mr. Jones and Mr. Hayes agreed
there needs to be a change to the SUP application to clarify who is the Owner of the property and who is leasing
the building. Mr. Hayes suggested to add Owner/Operator to the application for clarification. It was mentioned
that this is a new district and it will take some time to work out the details. Randy Holloman asked for printed
copy of the updated Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). Mr. Holloman wanted to know if the UDO specifies
who is required to fill out the SUP. Mr. Hayes stated that he wasn’t sure if it was specified in the UDO and it was
the verbiage on the form that needed clarification. Ms. Willoughby informed the Board that it was their desire
to have the owner sign the form for the SUP so, it ensures the owner was aware of what changes were made to
their property. Shane Strickland asked if there was an upstairs or apartment in the unit. Mr. Hayes answered not
in this unit.

Mr. Strickland stated that in the ordinance (301.2) it states that the petition should be from the owner. He also
mentioned that where Justin Jackson’s name was on the SUP, is where Joey Boykin’s name should have been.
Mr. Jones suggested that on the application it should also include the printed name of the signee for legibility.



Mr. Strickland stated the Board needs to hear from Mr. Boykin for validation purposes. Terry Rains pointed out
the address on the permit was not a valid address. Mr. Holloman asked the Board members if the Planning
Board was charged with making recommendations to the Town Board for SUP. Ms. Willoughby, replied that by
general statues the Planning Board has the option or ability to make a recommendation to the Town Board. Mr.
Jones stated that the State took away the final decision from the Planning Board and put it in the lap of the
Town Board. Ms. Willoughby stated that the Planning Board still has an option to review it. Mr. Hayes stated
that this Board is an advisory Board and can still make recommendations. It was reiterated that the application
for SUP needs better verbiage for clarification of who the owner of the property is.

The previous second and motion were rescinded

Motion- To recommend approval of this petition to the Town Board on the contingency that the owner of the
property comes in and properly fills out the paperwork. - Faye Starling

Second- Randy Holloman

Discussion-Mr. Jones restated the paperwork needs to be re done and in the future all applicants for SUP need
to be present. Terry Rains asked if the address will be changed as well on the application, he was assured him
that the application will be re done with all necessary corrections.

Vote- Unanimous

b. Special Use Permit for 103, 105 East Pine St., filled out by owner Clara -James/Adam Stuckey. Mr. Jones
informed the Board members there were 2 apartments upstairs, Massage therapy/ beauty shop (one
business) for upstairs, and a restaurant in both downstairs units. Mr. Jones asked Mr. Hayes if everything
has been met with the ordinance of the MS district. Mr. Hayes stated that yes it meets the ordinance and
the owner filled out the petition was filled out entirely by owner under his company name and his nhame.
Mr. Jones explained what was going to be apart of this restaurant, i.e. gas lanterns street lights,
decorations and speakers in the awning for ambiance. Mr. Adam Stuckey was praised for the work he has
put in to revitalize the building in the MS district since that building was originally set for demolition.

Motion- To recommend approval to the Town Board- Berry Godwin
Second- Randy Holloman

Discussion- Mr. Hayes reminded the Board that under the SUP, the Board can limit things they deem necessary.
For example, operating hours. Mr. Jones stated that it is difficult for the Planning Board to ask any questions
needed without anyone present to represent the businesses specified on the SUP request. Mr. Strickland
mentioned that what it states in the ordinance about business downstairs and this SUP is asking for business
both upstairs and downstairs. 405.35 in the UDO (Unified Development Ordinance) this points to having a home
occupation. Mr. Strickland raised the question if he could have a business upstairs, because the ordinance
doesn’t say you can’t, but it states you can’t have both. Mr. Hayes informed that 405.35 in the UDO was meant
for the homes that wanted to conduct business out of their homes. Mr. Jones stated that in a commercial
building, you can have an apartment upstairs and a business downstairs. Mrs. Joyner stated that from her
recollection the upstairs of the building would be apartment only not a mix of business and apartments. Mr.
Jones explained that there is a restaurant down stairs and in the three units upstairs will be the salon/massage
therapy and a live-in apartment. Mr. Strickland quoted the MS district in the UDO 304.1 (3) A, “Any existing
and/ or new development shall be required to have a base ground level dedicated for commercial and/or
storefront use followed by a max of two (2) floors which would be allowed for dwelling units or apartments.”
Mr. Strickland reiterated that from the ordinance it is not clear how they are able to have a business upstairs.



Mr. Jones stated that the Board needs to readdress this issue for commercial buildings versus homes for the
intent of what is done. Mr. Hayes mentioned that it can be address after this item. Mr. Jones mentioned that
when the district was changed it was new to the members and everyone is learning how to handle the
downtown district to help it grow. Mr. Jones said having apartments upstairs is a good thing, and he personally
doesn’t see the problem with an upstairs unit being used for a business in the MS district, if it is in a commercial
building. Mrs. Faye Starling asked if it was a good idea for people to live beside a business on the second floor.
Mr. Sam Heuertz mentioned that it is up to the renter to decide if they want to live beside a business. Mr.
Holloman stated that is how you would interpret the commercial residential with requirements in this district,
because it doesn’t say you can’t have a business nor does it say you can. Mr. Jones asked for a group vote and
then an individual vote by roll call. With Planning Board members Godwin, Holloman, Strickland and voting in
favor and members, Starling, Joyner and Holloman voting against.

Roll call vote:

Godwin-YAY

Starling-NAY

Joyner- NAY

Holloman- YAY

Rains- NAY

Strickland- YAY

Jones- YAY

With a 4-3 vote, the motion passed.

New Business- There were discussions of changes/updates to the UDO subdivision-409.1-2.

The suggested change would take out 409.1 and would combine the curb and gutter with sidewalks to 409.2.
The Board was given two options for recommended revisions written by Ms. Willoughby. Mr. Jones read out
the changes proposed. Mr. Jones pointed out that some of the verbiage in both options needed to be changed
to reflect a concise and non-optional regulation. Mr. Jones stated that essentially the ordinance should read,
shall provide sidewalks within the city limits and the ETJ (Extraterritorial Jurisdiction) of Pine Level. He went on
to say that within the city limits curb and gutter will be mandatory and in the ETJ is where the Board would
deem them necessary. Mr. Jones stated he would like to remove any room for interpretation and to make the
rules firm. Ms. Willoughby stated she will bring new revisions for the Board to review at the next Planning
Board meeting.

Next order of new business, three options were provided by Ms. Willoughby to the Board for a TIA
(Traffic Impact Analysis) ordinance for future developments. Mr. Jones informed the Board that the TIA done
on Peedin Rd. coming in to Pine Level was a count of 4,200 cars a day. With the Emily Gardens development
there will be 340 (estimated) homes, The DOT (Department of Transportation) will multiply every unit (home)
by 10 that would add 3,400 to the 4,200 previously counted that isn’t including all of the other developments.
The purpose is to require the developer to carry the responsibility of the TIA. There was discussion about all
three options and when the TIA report is required from the developers, and the verbiage used. The Board was
encouraged to look over the presented options and any recommendations were welcomed.

Next order of new business, a request from Little River Joco Properties, LLC, in regards to Country Store
Meadows subdivision, for a 6-month extension for the submission of the subdivision plat set to expire on April
11™, 2025. The approval of this request will give another year until deadline to turn in the final plat. They are
aware they also have an additional 6 months to come back, if needed.

Motion- to recommend approval of the extension to the Town Board- Randy Holloman
Second- Shane Strickland
Vote- Unanimous



Mr. Holloman asked if there was a requirement for a landscaping design/improvement to, be submitted
to the Town per the landscaping ordinance. according to Mr. Holloman this is in reference to the self-storage,
when they put up their fence it was assumed to be close to the property line, because when Duke Energy had to
put in a ground source they dug up half of the landscaping. The concern being if the landscaping was put in the
right of way/easement. Mr. Holloman’s concern was if the plan they submitted to the Town for the landscaping
matched the actuality of the property. Mr. Jones mentioned the trees directly under the powerline in front of
Playmates daycare. Making sure the plans submitted and what is done on the property its self was the concern.

ADJOURNMENT:
There being no further business to discuss, Shane Strickland made a motion to adjourn the meeting.

Faye Starling seconded the motion. Motion passed by unanimous vote. The meeting adjourned at 8:18

p.m.

L

Kevin Kornega¥; Chairman

Danielle Lanier, Administrative Assistant



